



Climate Change, Leisure and Community Committee MINUTES

Of a meeting held in the Penn Chamber, Three Rivers House, Rickmansworth, on Wednesday, 5 July 2023 from 7.30 - 9.08 pm

Present: Councillors

Chris Lloyd, Lead Member for Leisure Jon Tankard, Lead Member for Sustainability and Climate Paul Rainbow (for Steve Drury) Stephen Cox (for Stephen King) Ciaran Reed Narinder Sian David Major Louise Price Anne Winter Philip Hearn (for Ian Morris) Abbas Merali

Officers in Attendance:

Rebecca Young Emma Sheridan Michelle Wright Charlotte Gomes Kelly Barnard

Also in Attendance:

Anita Hibbs

External in Attendance:

John Sewell, from Everyone Active

CCLC1/23 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor Steve Drury; substitute being named Councillor Paul Rainbow. Councillor Stephen King, substitute being named Councillor Stephen Cox. Councillor Ian Morris, substitute being named Councillor Philip Hearn.

CCLC2/23 MINUTES

The minutes of the Leisure, Environment and Community Committee meeting held on Wednesday, 15 March 2023 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair of the meeting.

CCLC3/23 NOTICE OF OTHER BUSINESS

None received.

CCLC4/23 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Councillor Philip Hearn declared a non-pecuniary interest for item 7; his mother is a resident of the Chorleywood House estate.

Councillor Narinder Sian declared a non-pecuniary interest for item 6; his family home backs onto Rickmansworth Golf Course.

CCLC5/23 TO RECEIVE A PETITION UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18

The Chair advised of his intention to change the order of agenda item 7 to be moved after item 8

Clive Hallam, the nominated representative of Chorleywood, presented the petition on the request for CCTV camera installation.

The Chair reassured the petitioner that burglary and vehicle crime are key priorities for the Community Safety Partnerships team, and the council can work with the residents and the police to find appropriate options.

The Chair advised that the Lead Member for Community Partnerships, Councillor Steve Drury were to provide a written answer to the petition.

CCLC6/23 LEISURE FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT - SPORTS AND LEISURE MANAGEMENT (SLM)

The annual review was presented by John Sewell from Everyone Active. The contract for the Leisure management is a 20 year contract, and it is currently in its 5th year. The leisure venues the contract covers are; William Penn, South Oxhey Leisure Centre, Rickmansworth Golf Course and Sir James Altham multi use games area.

The focus is on 5 main areas:

- Increase in participation
- Health commitments
- Environment
- Accreditation
- Plans for 2023-2024

There has been a great improvement in the number of residents using the facilities throughout 2022 – 2023.

The presentation is to be circulated to Members of the Committee.

CCLC7/23 BISHOPS WOOD (INCLUDING BATCHWORTH HEATH) AND CHORLEYWOOD HOUSE ESTATE 5 YEAR MANAGEMENT PLANS

New management plans have been produced for 2023-2028 to replace the previous ones that have finished for both Bishops Wood, including Batchworth Heath and Chorleywood House Estate.

The report includes the feedback from the public consultation.

Officers advised that they were confident that external funding for the plans will be secured. The Council also receive a forestry commission grant.

Members raised concerns regarding the poor state of the footpath that leads from Solesbridge Lane to the River Chess, and the disrepair of the Grade II listed Pump House. Officers advised that these are being addressed and funding is being sought for the repairs.

Members also pointed out that the report did not include the refurbishment and maintenance of the tennis court. Officers need to first identify the budget in order to be able to secure funding to refurbish the tennis court.

A CIL application could also be considered for the refurbishment of the tennis court.

On being put to the Committee the recommendations as detailed in the report were declared CARRIED by the Chair, the voting being by general assent.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee agrees to adopt the 2023 – 2028 Management Plans for Chorleywood House Estate and Bishops Wood (including Batchworth Heath).

CCLC8/23 COMMUNITY SAFETY ANNUAL REPORT

Priorities for 2022/23 were serious violence and exploitation, domestic abuse prevention, motor vehicle crime, burglary and fraud, hate crime and counter terrorism. These are set annually, by reviewing local crime data, considering local concern, emerging issues and consultation with the local community.

The Annual Community Safety report includes different projects that have taken place under each priority; South West Herts Youth Action Panel, 'No More' service, providing 121 support to people who are at risk of serious violence, Herts Mind Network, Community Support Service, supporting people with mental health and complex needs. Other projects include; Violence Against Women, and Safe & Well visits, as well as training and raising awareness. A Violence Against Women and Girls Task Group has also been set up.

The new priorities for 2023/24 are:

- Violence
- Vulnerable people
- Burglary and motor crime
- Fraud and scam
- Hate crime and Counter terrorism

The Community Safety report will be brought back to committee annually.

Members raise the following questions and points:

Q. Would the Community Safety Board include the request for CCTV camera installation in the new priorities for 2023/24?

A. Community Safety Partnerships have 6 CCTV cameras available that had been funded. These cameras can be moved around the district. If a CCTV camera is needed to be moved to a different location, there is a process to follow; a request form should be filled in first, and a sponsor from the CSP is also required. This request then goes to the board for review and the board decides if the camera can be moved. Officers can provide written information on what the process is.

Cameras are moved around, and this is down to intelligence from the police, local community and the ASB group. There is a high cost to installation of CCTV cameras, and as there is no funding to extend or increase the number of CCTV cameras, this is not included in the new priorities.

Q. Are we as a district raising awareness of drug smuggling and is it included in the new priorities?

A. Drug awareness is a high priority, and it is part of the Serious Violence Duty which has been introduced by the government recently, and officer currently working on a bid to support vulnerable people.

Community Safety Partnerships work with Youth Action Panel and Youth Justice System and Probation. They refer vulnerable people and children who are involved in drugs to us. The No More service is heavily funded in regards to working with children in the district for early intervention.

Follow up on the request for joint up report showing who is responsible for the different areas within Community Safety, and where the gaps might be in our safety.

- Q. Are the different priorities on the same priority level or are there different levels to each priority?
- A. The priorities are on the same level, there is no difference.
- Q. Were there any success within the Burglary and Vehicle crime priority from 202/23?
- A. Mainly awareness raising events have been delivered by the constabulary; OPALS is for Older People Activity Learning and Safety working with residents to provide advice and guidance how to stay safe in their home.

Safe and Well visits are also carried out by the Fire Service. Recent intelligence from the police revealed a significant breakthrough in combating a vehicle crime gang across Hertfordshire.

- Q. Who represents the Council on the Community Safety Board? How often does the board meet? Are there any reports that come out of the meetings to inform the committee how well we are doing?
- A. Councillor Steve Drury is the Lead Member for CSB, the board meets three times a year. It is a closed meeting due to sensitive data being discussed.
- Q. Are any of the 6 CCTV cameras deployed in South Oxhey, and if yes can the location be disclosed?
- A. There are CCTV cameras in South Oxhey.
- Q. Where does the funding come from for the CCTV cameras?
- A. The funding is provided from the Community Safety budget.
- Q. Should apprehending not be included in the key priorities to deter criminal activities?
- A. Apprehending as a key priority sits with the police. CSP's priorities focus on crime prevention.
- Q. Is data on Hate crime available to the public, and how is hate crime awareness raised within the community?

A. Hate crime data is not included in the Community Safety Partnership annual review, however, the new census data is available. The council also has an Equalities Sub-Committee that receives reports on what the Community Safety Partnership team have done with regards to tackling hate crime. Officers can look into what other data is available to the public. Recent awareness events include a Community Fayre in Leavesden Country Park to encourage the community to access different services. Local cinema events have been run during Black

History Month, and Holocaust Memorial Day. Funding provided for Cassiobury Pride event in August. Officers attend events and work with the Hate crime officer from the police. Health Hubs have become third party hate crime reporting centres for the public to use who may not feel comfortable coming forward to report hate crime directly to the police. Officer training on identifying and reporting hate crime is also provided internally to council employees as well as partner organisations. To provide public data on hate crime in a number of incidents could lead to identification of individuals, and that is why this data is not published. Specific questions can be raised with officers confidentially.

CCLC9/23 WORK PROGRAMME

RESOLVED:

That the Committee receive the work programme.

CCLC10/23 OTHER BUSINESS AGREED UNDER ITEM 3

None.

CHAIR